
 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

1 
 

 
GWAC Members 
 

Ron Bernstein, GWAC Chair and President, 
RBCG, LLC 

Kay Aikin, Founder, CPO, Dynamic 
Grid/Introspective Systems 

Andrew Bordine, Sr. Practice Manager, Grid 
Automation, Actalent 

Shawn Chandler, Director, Guidehouse 

Marc Costa, Dir. Policy Planning, the Energy 
Coalition 

David Forfia, Principal Consultant, Utilicast 

Lorenzo Kristov, Principal, Electric System 
Policy, Structure, Market Design 

Mark Ortiz, Lead Architect, Dist. Energy Sys., 
Schneider Electric 

Farrokh Rahimi, Executive Vice President, Open 
Access Technology International, Inc. 

Aaron Snyder, Dir. of Grid Technology 
Consulting, EnerNex                                                           

GWAC Associates & Emeritus 

Mark Knight, GWAC Emeritus, 1898 & Company 

Jeff Morris GWAC Associate, Schneider Electric 

Ken Wacks, GWAC Emeritus 

 

GWAC Guest Speaker 

Alaa Mahjoub, Independent Digital Business 
Advisor 

 

GWAC Friends 

 

Lisa Affolabi 

Hani Alarian, CAISO 

Larisa Dobriansky, General Microgrids, Inc. 

Nicholas Domich, Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 

Peter Fitzgerald, INS Engineering 

Prabhu Karthikeyan, Landis +GYR 

Yashar Kenarangui, Xcel Energy 

Alex Papalexopoulos, ECCO International Inc. 

Harry Peterson, Siloxit 

Mark Siira, IEEE 

Julie Stroba, INS Engineering 

PNNL Support 

Jaime Kolln, PNNL GWAC Administrator 

Susie McGuire, GWAC Coordinator



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

2 
 

Ken Wacks noted that in other online meetings that he attends the rule has been that humans should be 
attending. Others on the call agreed with this position including Chair Ron Bernstein. Jaime will add this 
to the GWAC Bylaws, and it will go to a vote by the Council. 

Action:  add to the bylaws that attendees should be human and not AI bots. 

 

 

Jaime Kolln  reviewed the fact that the GWAC meetings are recorded to benefit the preparation of 
meeting minutes and to capture presenter recordings if they choose to allow them to be published on 
the GWAC website. 

Hani Alarian, CAISO, said it is his first invite to attend a GWAC meeting.  Jaime noted that he is now 
considered a GWAC Friend and will be invited to future meetings.  

Nicholas Domich, invited by Shawn Chandler, was also attending for the first time.  He is with PG&E. He 
works in the utility partnership division. He works in Utility Partnerships which essentially is aligning the 
internal people towards a common goal and also aligning with external contacts on potential projects, 
products and solutions and working towards resolving common industry problems and challenges. 

 

  

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

3 
 

 

Jaime Kolln reviewed the GWAC agenda for the November meeting. He noted that both the September 
and October GWAC meeting minutes will be reviewed and approved today. 

David Forfia gave a motion to approve the September 2024 meeting minutes as amended.  Ron 
Bernstein seconded the motion. There were no objections and the minutes for September were 
approved. 

David Forfia then gave a motion to approve the October meeting minutes as amended.  Ron Bernstein 
seconded the motion.  There were no objections, and the October meeting minutes were approved.  

Chair Bernstein expressed his appreciation of the meeting minutes compiled and edited by Susie 
McGuire. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

4 
 

 

 

Jaime reviewed list of upcoming conferences and events. 

Shawn Chandler will attend IEEE Grid Edge Technologies Conference and will give a presentation on 5G 
and 6G communication.   

Action: Add Shawn Chandler as an attendee/presenter  (done) 

Chair Ron Bernstein asked if there are new people attending today who would like to be recognized. Ron 
also asked that for GWAC Friends who are participating on the calls that they provide their organization 
name to be included in the meeting minutes. 

Action: For meeting minutes add the organization for Friends attendees if known.   

Mark Siira requested to give an early Liaison presentation today. Mark is not able to stay until the end of 
the meeting today. 

Mark Siira, IEEE, SC21 Chair, said he will present a recap of the IEEE Standards Committee 21 to GWAC 
and he extends an invite those on the call who are interested in participating. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

5 
 

 

  

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

6 
 

 

 

 

 

SC21 reports to the board of governors on the full standards committee.  



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

7 
 

 

 

Mark and Doug would like to make GWAC aware of this work group and invite anyone interested to 
participate.  Doug Houseman is chair of the work group and had hoped to join today but he had a 
conflict.  All interested are welcome to become involved, please contact Mark Siira or Doug Houseman. 

 

IEEE P2030 Contacts: 

• Mark Siira, SC21 Chair, mark.siira@ieee.org or Doug Houseman, IEEE P2030 Chair, 
doug.houseman@1898andco.com 

• Project Summary and signup: https://sagroups.ieee.org/scc21/standards/ieee-std-2030-2011/ 

GWAC Accomplishments 

Jaime Kolln reviewed some of the GWAC publications which are available on the website and on the 
GWAC YouTube site. 

mailto:mark.siira@ieee.org
mailto:doug.houseman@1898andco.com
https://sagroups.ieee.org/scc21/standards/ieee-std-2030-2011/


 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

8 
 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

9 
 

Jaime Kolln will be modifying the GWAC presentation template to include a video link to the new GWAC 
Communications video and also to include the updated GWAC Mission and Vision statement. This is the 
template that GWAC members can use when speaking on behalf of GWAC at events and meetings. 

Action: Modify the GWAC Templates to include the GWAC Communications video (all 3 videos in one) 
and the updated GWAC Mission & Vision Statement. 

Jaime also noted that some upgrades to the GWAC website are needed, and this is being discussed 
internally at PNNL.  

Jaime asked all GWAC Members, Associates, and Emeritus to review their photo and bio on the GWAC 
website.  Please send any needed updates to Susie McGuire. 

Action: GWAC, GWAC Associates & Emeritus are asked to update bios and photos. 

Jaime Kolln introduced today’s Guest Speaker: Alaa Mahjoub, Advisor in the UAE: 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

10 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

11 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

12 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

13 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

14 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

15 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

16 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

17 
 

 

 

Kay Aikin asked about a fully integrated system, she has some background in this from past experience. 

Alaa said about the smart city initiative, they had some conferences about it.   



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

18 
 

Kay asked if the cyber-physical connection was able to be made and asked about a train and a factory 
communicating – can the train frequency be varied to avoid congestion based on rider data? 

Alaa said for interconnections there is something to connect all the initiatives together, there is a 
platform, APIs and data, marketplace connectivity to connect sectors. He saw something similar for 
fleets. 

Kay said she has been out of this for ten years and she was curious to see if it is moving forward. 

Alaa said it is moving forward aggressively at high speed. 

Marc Costa had met some industry contacts in Abu Dabi last year and he was impressed with how highly 
coordinated different groups were.  He asked what the net motivation is for everyone to coordinate? 

Alaa replied that the sector has already achieved three milestones. The first milestone was the transition 
from a vertically integrated model of ownership and control to a horizontally integrated one, which 
involved unbundling the sector into three subsectors (generation, transmission, and distribution) under 
the supervision of the Water and Electricity Authority. The second milestone was the establishment of 
the Emirates National Grid, which interconnected all the Emirate's electricity networks. The third 
milestone was the interconnection with all GCC countries. The control and information architecture has 
been transformed to align with these milestones. The primary motivation for coordination has been to 
optimize costs by improving the overall spinning reserve and enhancing network security. Now, a fourth 
milestone is underway: the energy transition, which began with the establishment of grid-scale 
renewable energy sources.  

Now they are talking about the energy transition with renewables. 

Jaime suggested that any remaining Q&A discussions be conducted in the chat.   

Alaa will put his contact information in the chat area. 

Jaime noted Susie will reach out to Alaa about putting his recording on the GWAC website. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

19 
 

 

 

Jaime Kolln noted that the annual GWAC Call for Candidates is open. This is for the class of 2025-2026. 
Candidate  information and the application is located on the GWAC website.  It is expected that there 
will be one or two openings for the next two-year term.  A certain time commitment is required as 
noted in the application materials.  

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

20 
 

Jaime asked the GWAC members to repost links to the 3 videos in their social media accounts. Jaime 
also asked current GWAC members to refer interested candidates to the three newly developed GWAC 
explainer videos that were recently published on the GWAC website.  

 

 

 

Jaime said he is hoping to have a GWAC meeting that is co-located with a NARUC meeting to help us 
understand the needs of regulators. 

Jaime invited today’s attendees to add ideas for other organizations that GWAC should collaborate with.  

Action: Jaime to follow up with Artis R, PNNL about an INCOSE involvement. 

Chair Ron Bernstein has arranged time and meeting space at the AHR Expo for a GWAC panel 
presentation.  It is currently planned for Feb. 10, 2025, at 4:30pm. It is an end of the day slot, and 
several have said they can participate.  The topic is along the lines of the tutorial at RE+.  The list of 
presenters so far are; Ron Bernstein, Jaime Kolln, Ron Ambrosio, Andy Bordine, and David Forfia. 

Ron Bernstein is also setting up a meeting for the GWAC AHR attendees to meet with colleagues from 
the Design Lights Consortium on the evening of Feb 10. This will be an opportunity for the two groups to 
discuss a possible collaboration. 

Action: Susie to set a meeting with the AHR panel people, 30 min to go over what will be presented 
(Ron B, Andy B, David F, Ron A) 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

21 
 

Plans are underway for the next RE+ - there will be a morning GWAC F2F meeting followed by an 
afternoon panel.  Preliminary discussions with Aaron Smallwood have been encouraging.  The next RE+ 
will be held in Las Vegas in September 2025. 

Ron B would like to see this get organized soon and to be scaled back from this fall’s GWAC Symposium.  

Kay Aikin noted that she will not be able to attend RE+ in Las Vegas. 

 

Rahul Bahadur said that Ron Ambrosio is reviewing the slides developed so far and this presentation this 
is close to being complete. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

22 
 

 

Jaime asked Lorenzo if it’s time to reconvene the Grid Architecture for Regulators group.  Lorenzo 
suggested holding a meeting after the Thanksgiving holiday and added that any things have happened in 
these domains in the last six months. He will invite people including Jaime to go over what they have 
and how they can proceed to complete this paper. Jaime offered some help in getting new participants 
and suggested that  Matt McDonald might want to be involved.  Lorenzo said he follow up with Matt. 
Jamie added that he thought there was a new connection regarding his new work. 

Jaime has some PNNL contacts that may be able to help and are familiar with policies. They may be able 
to provide some help and insight. Jereme Twitchell, PNNL would be one person that Jaime is thinking of.  
A conversation might lead to something. 

Lorenzo will set up an early Dec meeting on this.  Marc Costa offered help and he also said he knows a 
good regulatory lawyer who just moved to California. 

Action: Jaime to add Marc Costa to the list of team members for this working group. 

Peter Fitzgerald said he would like to join the group. 

Action: Susie, Jaime to send an email to introduce Peter Fitzgerald to Lorenzo. (done) 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

23 
 

 

Mark Patterson is not able to be on the call today.  Jaime noted that he has been leading this effort and 
also Kay Aikin has done a lot to keep this paper moving as well as Shawn Chandler. 

Kay would like to help get this done and estimates to have 6 or 7 hours left to go although she has some 
other conflicting commitments at this time. 

Kay asked not to restart the meeting until she has a draft ready for the group to review. The recurring 
meeting for it has expired.  Jaime will reschedule it. 

Action: Jaime Kolln will remind Kay Aikin about resuming the Grid Architecture/Build Back meetings 
and will to keep checking back. Also, Jaime will add Shawn Chandler to the invite list.  



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

24 
 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

25 
 

Liaison Reports 

 

Farrokh Rahimi – IEEE: Farrokh noted that the 2025 IEEE Meetings: Grid Edge San Diego, January 21 – 
23, 2025 is approaching. There will be several GWAC people involved and also likewise at DistribuTech 
March 24 – 27, 2025, in Dallas, and IEEE PES Policy forum in DC .  The PES General Meeting in Austin on 
July 27 to 31, 2025.  Not sure who is participating there.   

Shawn Chandler participates on the IEEE Block Chain work group. There is a new electrification issue 
coming out on virtual power plants and the Block Chain team got a paper accepted into that special 
issue. If anyone is interested in participating on the IEEE Blockchain for Energy group there are openings 
for more participants. There are a number of speaking opportunities coming in 2025.  

Marc Costa said he could suggest some international contacts such as a few people from the 
Netherlands that may want to be involved.  

ASHRAE - Ron Bernstein: ASHRAE will meet as part of the AHR Expo in Orlando.  Ron will be giving four 
different presentations at the Expo. He has arranged for PNNL to have a meeting room to give a panel 
talk as part of AHR’s educational offerings.  

Ron B. is working on a new presentation on the topic of  network segmentation and how to get a good 
cybersecurity plan for the construction of OT and operational technology network. That is  a new 
ASHRAE group and may be a standard or an enhancement to existing standards. 

Ron B. noted that he is not involved with CTA anymore. He will add Design Lights Consortium (DLC) to 
the liaison group. There is some new work going on in collaboration between various building systems 
and energy efficiency and energy incentive measures coming from utilities. He will no more in the 
coming weeks. 

ACTION Susie to remove CTA and add DLC for Ron Bernstein’s Liaison affiliations. (done) 

ISO/IEC - Ken Wacks; Ken just got the news that three more standards are to be published in Geneva and 
will be available from each country that is a member. The standards to be published enhance the 
gateway between the home or building and outside by providing cybersecurity protection for occupants, 
data privacy and safety. We’ve developed a series of standards that enhance the gateway to provide 
functions that we call the sentry functions.  The gateway not only does energy conversion but also 
watches data flowing in and out to make sure that it’s to legitimate devices and that it does not convey 
any data that would jeopardize cybersecurity and customer data privacy and safety.  

On the Interstate Renewable Council, IREC, Ken chairs the Customer Grid Edge Committee. We are 
meeting this Friday at 1:30pm to 3:00pm Eastern time.  They are having a talk this week on Meter 
Socket adapters and the art of main panel upgrade, MPU avoidance. In simple terms this is how we 
connect DERS into the home electricity grid with minimal inconvenience and without requiring a new 
electricity panel. We have a presentation from experts from a company called Connect DER. Their VP of 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

26 
 

Policy and Marketing Strategy recommended the speaker to us. They have spoken previously, and it was 
so popular that we are having them back again. Ken Wacks is happy to provide access to the meeting for 
those who are interested. 

SEPA - David Forfia: David presented since Aaron Smallwood had to leave the call a bit early. David 
attended a recent SEPA meeting.  He saw many that had been in SGIP on his technical group.  They 
discussed how to align with the incoming administration. 

Aaron Snyder gave an update on the NEMA paper that he has been contributing to. They are discussing 
how to socialize the paper once it is final.  

Aaron had put someone in the chat list already – Steve Griffith. Jaime  

NEMA/IBEW – Ron Bernstein is working with the Design Lighting consortium on for training and 
advanced education. He has done with in the past with both groups. That project may start in early 2025 
as a journeyman tutorial.  Jaime suggested that Ron B. and Aaron give us a contact from NEMA for the 
Liaison list. 

Jaime asked if Ron B. or Aaron S. could send an intro email to connect him with Steve G. 

New Business 

David Forfia asked about GWAC’s policy on how to prevent AI attendees from note taking and recording 
of the meetings as anonymous participants. David gave a motion to propose amending the GWAC 
Bylaws to include this. 

 

Aaron Snyder seconded the motion. 

Marc Costa asked if AI is used for personal by participants if that would be acceptable. 

Ron Bernstein asked in that case how would GWAC  manage GWAC recorded content used by attendees 
for personal purposes?    

Kay Aikin said she has heard these concerns at other meetings, it is becoming a common concern. 

Aaron Snyder noted that he saw a recording AI bot on this call at the beginning.  He could not identify 
the owner.  He would not be able to ask how the material would be used. He added that GWAC  already 
have a policy as stated at the beginning of the meeting about how the official recording would be used. 

Ken Wacks noted that some US states have a “two party rule” that governs this situation. He said that AI 
bots violate the two-party rule which is strictly enforced in many states. 

Jaime Kolln said the Standards groups that he is involved with do not allow the AI bots. 

Jaime Kolln asked the group to approve the motion to disallow AI bots on GWAC Teams meetings. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

27 
 

Kay Aikin abstained. 

The motion passed with quorum.  

Ron B. said we can also address this issue in Teams controls.  

Ron B. added that he is concerned that if sensitive or candid information from the call was 
misinterpreted or used somewhere else out of context that it could result in complaints or even legal 
issues later on for the GWAC. 

Action: Jaime Kolln send a message about AI recordings of GWAC meetings by participants to be sent 
out. 

Ron B. noted that if someone gets on a call and has excessive background noise they may be muted by 
the host as well. We do this already when needed to prevent the meeting from being interrupted. 

Lorenzo said he doesn’t get to see the list of people attending during the meeting.  Teams is set so that 
only the meeting hosts can see that information.  

Lorenzo asked if he can see who all is attending?  

Jaime said it is already captured in the meeting minutes. 

Ron B. said if everyone were made a co-host in Teams it would result in a meeting with no controls and 
we might find that is not desirable.  

Peter Fitzgerald said he can see the whole list. Jaime said it probably has to do with how you are signed 
into Teams.  

 

 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

November 20, 2024  

28 
 

 

 

Chair Bernstein added that he will not be on the December GWAC Call due to a conflict.  Jaime asked 
him to arrange a substitute. 

David Forfia offered to cover as chair and Ron B. agreed. David will be the chair in Absentia for the 
December GWAC meeting. 

Chair Bernstein formally adjourned the meeting and thanked Alaa Mahjoub for his presentation today.  
He also thanked today’s new meeting participants and he encouraged them to consider participating in 
one of the GWAC work groups.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	GWAC Members
	PNNL Support

